








19.1148.02000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

02/08/2019

Amendment to: SB 2346

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $6,200,000 $0 $6,200,000

Expenditures $0 $0 $294,281 $0 $294,281 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $294,281 $0 $294,281 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Revises indemnity fund assessments to a lower rate and applies to all transactions, under certain conditions; 
requires financial statements of license applicants and authorizes the commission to require other financial 
documents when needed, and provides disclosure protection for those filings.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The current fund assessment is suspended. Under the bill, when assessment is reinstated, it will be for all sales, at 
a lower rate. The credit sale contract indemnity fund will be renamed, and all assessments will be deposited into this 
same special fund. This will result in revenue to the fund once it is reinstated.

The bill's specific requirement for financial statements from applicants, the specific authority given the commission to 
obtain financial documents when necessary, and the specific protection for these documents from open records 
disclosure permit the commission to conduct more robust financial reviews of licensees at the time of application 
and at whatever other time needed. To implement this, the commission will request one additional FTE for the 
program's inspection staff, and associated salary and operating appropriations for that FTE, plus fully funding the 
existing inspection staff FTE that is currently funded only at the 3/4 level. This will increase expenditures and 
appropriations for the upcoming biennium and the following biennium.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

The current fund assessment is suspended. Under the bill, when assessment is reinstated, it will be for all sales, at 
a lower rate. The credit sale contract indemnity fund will be renamed, and all assessments will be deposited into this 
same special fund. This will result in revenue to the fund once it is reinstated.

There is no way to predict when the assessment will reach the statutory minimum causing the assessments to be 
reinstated. The fund balance is currently approximately 4,470,000. The revenue numbers provided assume that the 



assessment will resume and be applied to all transactions at the beginning of the biennium, but there is really no 
way to accurately predict when the fund will be reinstated, how much it will be used, or when assessments will be 
suspended again.

The revised proposed new assessment is 1/20th of 1% of the value of all grain sold. A three year average of all 
jurisdictional grain sold in North Dakota in 2015 through 2017 was $6.2 billion. 1/20th of 1% of $6.2 billion is $3.1 
million. Biennial collections, to be deposited into the indemnity fund, are therefore estimated at $6.2 million. This 
estimate is dependent on grain values and sales being comparable to the three-year average. The fiscal note shows 
the same estimate for each biennium, although this, too, depends on grain values and trade volume.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

The bill's specific requirement for financial statements from applicants, the specific authority given the commission to 
obtain financial documents when necessary, and the specific protection for these documents from open records 
disclosure permit the commission to conduct more robust financial reviews of licensees at the time of application 
and at whatever other time needed. To implement this, the commission will request one additional FTE for the 
program's inspection staff, and associated salary and operating appropriations for that FTE, plus fully funding the 
existing inspection staff FTE that is currently funded only at the 3/4 level. This will increase expenditures and 
appropriations for the upcoming biennium and the following biennium.

Estimated expenditures for a biennium for 1.25 additional inspector FTEs are $245,281 in salaries and benefits, and 
$49,000 in operating funds. This results in a total estimated expenditure impact of $294,281 for the 2019-2021 
biennium. The same number is used for the 2021-2022 biennium, as the only additional expenditures for that 
biennium would be general salary increases and increases in state travel costs, which are unknown at this time.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Increase in appropriations will be necessary regarding the expenditures noted in Part B.

The bill's specific requirement for financial statements from applicants, the specific authority given the commission to 
obtain financial documents when necessary, and the specific protection for these documents from open records 
disclosure permit the commission to conduct more robust financial reviews of licensees at the time of application 
and at whatever other time needed. To implement this, the commission will request one additional FTE for the 
program's inspection staff, and associated salary and operating appropriations for that FTE, plus fully funding the 
existing inspection staff FTE that is currently funded only at the 3/4 level. This will increase expenditures and 
appropriations for the upcoming biennium and the following biennium.

Appropriation will be necessary to fund the estimated expenditures for a biennium for 1.25 additional inspector FTEs 
are $245,281 in salaries and benefits, and $49,000 in operating funds. This results in a total estimated expenditure 
impact of $294,281 for the 2019-2021 biennium. The same number is used for the 2021-2022 biennium, as the only 
additional expenditures for that biennium would be general salary increases and increases in state travel costs, 
which are unknown at this time. Increased appropriation of $294,281 would be required.

Name: Illona Jeffcoat-Sacco

Agency: PSC

Telephone: 701-328-2407

Date Prepared: 02/11/2019



19.1148.01000 FISCAL NOTE
Requested by Legislative Council

01/21/2019

Bill/Resolution No.: SB 2346

1 A. State fiscal effect: Identify the state fiscal effect and the fiscal effect on agency appropriations compared to funding 
levels and appropriations anticipated under current law.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds General Fund Other Funds

Revenues $0 $0 $0 $12,400,000 $0 $12,400,000

Expenditures $0 $0 $294,281 $0 $294,281 $0

Appropriations $0 $0 $294,281 $0 $294,281 $0

1 B. County, city, school district and township fiscal effect: Identify the fiscal effect on the appropriate political  
subdivision.

2017-2019 Biennium 2019-2021 Biennium 2021-2023 Biennium

Counties $0 $0 $0

Cities $0 $0 $0

School Districts $0 $0 $0

Townships $0 $0 $0

2 A. Bill and fiscal impact summary: Provide a brief summary of the measure, including description of the provisions 
having fiscal impact (limited to 300 characters).

Reinstates indemnity fund assessments (up to a certain level)at a lower rate and applies to all transactions, requires 
financial statements of license applicants and authorizes the commission to require other financial documents when 
needed, and provides disclosure protection for those filings.

B. Fiscal impact sections: Identify and provide a brief description of the sections of the measure which have fiscal  
impact. Include any assumptions and comments relevant to the analysis.

The current fund assessment is suspended. Under the bill, assessment will be reinstated for credit sale contract 
sales, at a lower rate, and initiated for all other sales, at the same lower rate. The credit sale contract indemnity fund 
will be renamed, and all assessments will be deposited into this same special fund. This will result in revenue to the 
fund.

The bill's specific requirement for financial statements from applicants, the specific authority given the commission to 
obtain financial documents when necessary, and the specific protection for these documents from open records 
disclosure permit the commission to conduct more robust financial reviews of licensees at the time of application 
and at whatever other time needed. To implement this, the commission will request one additional FTE for the 
program's inspection staff, and associated salary and operating appropriations for that FTE, plus fully funding the 
existing inspection staff FTE that is currently funded only at the 3/4 level. This will increase expenditures and 
appropriations for the upcoming biennium and the following biennium.

3. State fiscal effect detail: For information shown under state fiscal effect in 1A, please:

A. Revenues: Explain the revenue amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each revenue type and fund 
affected and any amounts included in the executive budget.

The assessment will be reinstated for credit sale contract sales, at a lower rate, and initiated for all other sales, at 
the same lower rate. The credit sale contract indemnity fund will be renamed, and all assessments will be deposited 
into this special fund. This will result in revenue to the fund.

The proposed new assessment is 1/10th of 1% of the value of all grain sold. An amendment will likely be proposed 



to include stored grain in the assessment, so storage claimants can participate in the event of an insolvency. A three 
year average of all jurisdictional grain sold in North Dakota in 2015 through 2017 was $6.2 billion. 1/10th of 1% of 
$6.2 billion is $6.2 million. Biennial collections, to be deposited into the indemnity fund, are therefore estimated at 
$12.4 million. This estimate is dependent on grain values and sales being comparable to the three-year average. 
The fiscal note shows the same estimate for each biennium, although this, too, depends on grain values and trade 
volume.

B. Expenditures: Explain the expenditure amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency, line item, and 
fund affected and the number of FTE positions affected.

The bill's specific requirement for financial statements from applicants, the specific authority given the commission to 
obtain financial documents when necessary, and the specific protection for these documents from open records 
disclosure permit the commission to conduct more robust financial reviews of licensees at the time of application 
and at whatever other time needed. To implement this, the commission will request one additional FTE for the 
program's inspection staff, and associated salary and operating appropriations for that FTE, plus fully funding the 
existing inspection staff FTE that is currently funded only at the 3/4 level. This will increase expenditures and 
appropriations for the upcoming biennium and the following biennium.

Estimated expenditures for a biennium for 1.25 additional inspector FTEs are $245,281 in salaries and benefits, and 
$49,000 in operating funds. This results in a total estimated expenditure impact of $294,281 for the 2019-2021 
biennium. The same number is used for the 2021-2022 biennium, as the only additional expenditures for that 
biennium would be general salary increases and increases in state travel costs, which are unknown at this time.

C. Appropriations: Explain the appropriation amounts. Provide detail, when appropriate, for each agency and fund 
affected. Explain the relationship between the amounts shown for expenditures and appropriations. Indicate whether 
the appropriation or a part of the appropriation is included in the executive budget or relates to a continuing 
appropriation.

Increase in appropriations will be necessary regarding the expenditures noted in Part B.

The bill's specific requirement for financial statements from applicants, the specific authority given the commission to 
obtain financial documents when necessary, and the specific protection for these documents from open records 
disclosure permit the commission to conduct more robust financial reviews of licensees at the time of application 
and at whatever other time needed. To implement this, the commission will request one additional FTE for the 
program's inspection staff, and associated salary and operating appropriations for that FTE, plus fully funding the 
existing inspection staff FTE that is currently funded only at the 3/4 level. This will increase expenditures and 
appropriations for the upcoming biennium and the following biennium.

Appropriation will be necessary to fund the estimated expenditures for a biennium for 1.25 additional inspector FTEs 
are $245,281 in salaries and benefits, and $49,000 in operating funds. This results in a total estimated expenditure 
impact of $294,281 for the 2019-2021 biennium. The same number is used for the 2021-2022 biennium, as the only 
additional expenditures for that biennium would be general salary increases and increases in state travel costs, 
which are unknown at this time. Increased appropriation of $294,281 would be required.

Name: Illona Jeffcoat-Sacco

Agency: PSC

Telephone: 701-328-2407

Date Prepared: 01/25/2019
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2019 SENATE STANDING COMMITTEE MINUTES 

Agriculture Committee 
Roosevelt Park Room, State Capitol 

SB 2346 
1/31/2019 

Job # 31874 (1:10:46) 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 60-02, a new section to 

chapter 60-02.1, and a new section to chapter 60-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to records confidentiality for warehousemen and grain buyers and assessment 
refunds for grain producers; to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 60-02-07 and 

sections 60-02-11, 60-02.1-07, 60-02.1-37, 60-02.1-38, 60-04-09, 60-04-10, 
60-10-01, 60-10-02, 60-10-03, 60-10-04, 60-10-05, 60-10-06, 60-10-07, 60-10-09, 

60-10-10, 60-10-13, 60-10-14, and 60-10-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to warehouse and grain buyer licensing, scale ticket conversions, claims 

distributions, assessments and refunds, subrogation, and unlicensed grain buyers; to 
provide a penalty; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for reports. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 4 Attachments 

 
Chairman Luick opened the hearing on SB 2346. 
 
Senator Terry Wanzek, testifies in favor (see attachment #1) 
 
Senator Wanzek: For the record, we need to take a look at the roving grain buyer license. 
As we work through this bill, we need more emphasis on oversight on the front-end. The bill 
is, as presented, raising the fund limits from $6M to $10M when the assessment fee would 
kick off. Under current law, it’s $6M law and there is no assessment fee being collected. 
When it triggers under today’s law, it’s $3M. I don’t want to be accused of growing the 
indemnity fund, so I have proposed amendments that would revert this bill back to what 
current law is. 
 
(20:25) Senator Klein: We’ve been here at the advent of the first indemnity fund. We had 
set a limit and brought that limit down. Where are we at with that fund right now, and would 
there be an assessment right away? 
 
Senator Wanzek: We are at roughly $4.5M in the credit sale contract indemnity fund. If we 
pass this bill, it would be transferred into the grain indemnity fund, so we would not be 
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assessed yet. The only way we would be assessed is if this speculative insolvency that’s out 
there needs to indemnify some of those claims and we spend it down below $3M. 
 
Senator Klein: The current indemnity fund does not allow for a refund. Under the new 
program, everyone that is being assessed will have an opportunity to get a refund. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Yes. We looked into what Indiana does. They have a similar indemnity 
fund, but they do allow their producers to opt out of it. To be able to manage that efficiently, 
everybody’s has to be collected but you appeal to the regulating agency, this case the Public 
Service Commission (PSC), and you can, under the new language of this bill, opt out of the 
indemnity fund. People can opt out and get their assessment fee back, but if their grain is 
ever in an insolvency, they aren’t going to get any benefits.  
 
Senator Klein: Under this new proposal, there would be an opportunity to get a refund, even 
if you couldn’t in the old program? Now you can. 
 
Senator Wanzek: I hear, “all we’re doing here is bailing out bad actors”. We’re encouraging 
more risk-taking. I don’t see it that way because you’re not going to be made 100% whole 
and you’re limited to how much you can be indemnified. It’s not about bailing the bad actor 
out; it’s about trying to protect the innocent folks who get caught in the middle. I’ve seen 
situations like that in the community, and it’s devastating when the local farmer doesn’t get 
paid and can’t pay his bills. It trickles down and effects everybody.  
 
Senator Klein: Some years ago, we had an issue where prepaid fertilizer and chemicals and 
the company went insolvent. 
 
Senator Wanzek: This would not provide any protection for them. In an insolvency, the PSC 
comes in and takes receivership, liquidates the trust assets and makes sure everybody that 
has a claim gets paid rightfully within the law. However, after they’re done with them, it 
probably goes to bankruptcy court, and those who prepaid for fertilizer seed, their claim might 
be addressed there. That’s another thing I would recommend to my producer and farm 
friends. You want to make sure you’re dealing with a reputable company. 
 
Senator Hogan: In light of the vulnerable position that the entire Agriculture economy is in 
the state in is right now, is the likelihood of insolvency higher right now? We have been in 
bad positions before, has the insolvencies gotten higher? 
 
Senator Wanzek: I would probably say no in the sense that a grain buyer or a public 
warehouse grain buyer, they take a margin, so the market does not affect them as much. 
Whether corn is $3 or $8, they take a margin, and good operators manage that. Good grain 
buyers are careful not to get into a speculative position. Usually when we buy beans from 
some local producer, and he wants to sell them at a certain price, we most likely have it sold 
down the line at a price with our margin locked in. We don’t usually like to speculate, that’s 
when people get into trouble. We’re here trying to address the minority situation. The majority 
is we have a lot of good operators that are doing a good job of marketing our farmers’ grains, 
commodities and products. 
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Chairman Luick: I think most of the laws that we pass are for probably 10% of the population, 
10% of the situations.  
 
Senator Hogan: So this isn’t really market-driven? 
 
Senator Wanzek: I would say not. The market affects the farmer. We don’t set our margin 
or prices. As a farmer, we’re more at the mercy of the global markets. 
 
(31) Randy Christman, Commissioner of Public Service Commission, testifies in favor 
(see attachment #2) 
 
Senator O. Larsen: Can we have a little bit of history about where this indemnity came 
about? I know that a couple of session back, we tweaked it a little bit. 
 
Christman: The overall model is over 125 years’ old; that is one of the problems. It is built 
on farmers taking their grain to the warehouse and keeping it there until they sold it to a miller 
or someone around town then go get it out of the warehouse. That’s changed dramatically. 
The biggest change in recent times was in 2003 when that credit sale contract indemnity fund 
was created. Up until that time, if you had credit sale contracts, you had no coverage at all. 
Those people, through the legislature, said they were going to pay that assessment and 
create that protection for themselves. Insolvency cases it has worked pretty well. We have 
brought some changes trying to do more to avoid these situations and trying to do more to 
protect the producers when that happens. Both of them were turned down; however, in part 
of our process 2 years ago, part of that bill did pass that made some minor verbiage changes 
and allowed us to do some electronic licensing and also switching the licensing to 2-year 
periods instead of 1.  
 
Chairman Luick: Does this change in any way the bonding requirements? 
 
Christman: No, it does not.  
 
Senator Hogan: Over the last 5 years, how many insolvencies have you been involved in? 
 
Christman: In the last 6 years, there have been two. There’s a new case that we have 
recently requested the court to appoint us as trustee. That just came in the last couple of 
days; we have not been able to get the financial records yet even.  
 
Senator Hogan: Do you anticipate any increases in light of the Agriculture economy 
situation?  
 
Christman: I think Senator Wanzek summed that up pretty well. In one case, the insolvent 
person said what really collapsed him was the markets had improved considerably over a 
long period of time, and his farmer customers wanted out of their contracts.  
 
(41:55) Scott Rising, North Dakota Soy Bean Growers, testifies in favor 
 
Rising: We are particularly attracted by the attempt to strengthening the licensing process 
in this bill, and we urge a Do Pass. 
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(42:25) Bart Schott, Farmer and Representative for ND Corn Growers, testifies in favor 
 
Schott: We support this bill. It makes sense and adds cash grain sales to a credit sale as 
well.  
 
(43:40) Pete Hanebutt, ND Farm Bureau, testifies in favor 
 
Hanebutt: I’ve been involved with this discussion. Our fund in Indiana worked well to my 
knowledge, and there’s a lot of good things about this. I know it needs some work yet, but 
we’ll trust you to get it right in the end. I would just agree with the previous speakers and urge 
a Do Pass. 
 
Senator O. Larsen: What is the amount in that fund down there? 
 
Hanebutt: I’m not sure. I’ve been here for 6 years, so at this point, I haven’t kept track of it. 
However, my friends there says it still works fine. 
 
 
(45:15) Doug Goehring, ND Agriculture Commissioner, testifies as neutral party (see 
attachment #3) 
 
Senator Hogan: What is CCC? 
 
Goehring: Commodity Credit Corporation; it’s a federal program. 
 
Senator Hogan: How many roving grain buyers do we currently have in the state and how 
is that industry growing? How do you monitor it? 
 
Goehring: I don’t have the program, so I can’t tell you how many we have in the state, but 
we have some. 
 
Chairman Luick: We were told earlier from the PSC’s office that it averages between 90-93 
a year and fluctuates 2-3 per year. 
 
Goehring: Some states don’t allow roving grain buyers at all unless there are some 
stipulations on how they do business in the state. 
 
Chairman Luick: Do you know if South Dakota has roving grain buyer applications? 
 
Goehring: I assume that they don’t even deal with roving grain buyers there. 
 
Chairman Luick: I believe in the organic farming industry because they have this organic 
conference that goes on in Aberdeen, I know that some of those purchases of that organic 
product don’t have physical presence in South Dakota. I’m assuming that they have to have 
some, but I don’t know if they’re treated the same way as what we do in North Dakota. 
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Goehring: That would suggest that if you’re dealing with a buyer in South Dakota that is not 
an elevator, then you’re right. Maybe it’s because of the oversight that they’re providing, how 
they’re managing it, maybe they’re doing a better job of curtailing it. They shared that they’ve 
had 3 insolvencies since 2000. One was intent to fraud. 
 
Chairman Luick: Would you be comfortable if we took some of your information here about 
your proposed ideas and run with them if we so choose?  
 
Goehring: That is the reason for my testimony.  
 
(56:35) Konrad Crockford, Director of Compliance for NDPSC, neutral party 
 
Crockford: I oversee the grain licensing program for PSC. Regarding the number of roving 
grain buyers in the state, we currently have 99. A large majority of the buyers we have are 
companies that have brick and mortar facilities outside of the state but want to be able to 
purchase grain within ND. They are existing elevators within Minnesota, South Dakota, 
Montana and also Canada. South Dakota has roving grain buyers. They divide their licenses 
between two types: class a and class b. They have all the categories that we have under 
each license type- public warehouse, facility-based and roving grain buyer. If you operate 
under a class a license, you’re authorized to purchase more than $5M in grain assets in the 
state per year and required to submit quarterly financial statements to the commission. It’s a 
public utilities commission in South Dakota who oversees their program. If you have a class 
b license, you’re only authorized to purchase up to $5M and not authorized to use voluntary 
credit sale contracts. South Dakota does not have an indemnity fund that we have here for 
the protection of credit sale contracts. 
 
(58:55) Rick Clayburgh, President and CEO of the ND Bankers Association, testifies in 
favor with proposed amendments (see attachment #4) 
 
Clayburgh: At the end of my testimony is 4 sections of code that we were looking to propose 
in a bill ourselves to address a number of these issues. We believe that the indemnity fund 
should be addressed and that the $6M might be too low. We think that numbers could be 
close to $8M of folks that have been defrauded; there are certainly concerns there. There 
are a number of sections that we provide suggestions for amendments.  
 
Chairman Luick: How does your association feel about the premium of the fund? 
 
Clayburgh: We don’t have a direct opinion on that; that is the opinion of the policy branch of 
government to decide. 
 
Senator Hogan: Have you looked at Senator Wanzek’s amendments and if so, do they 
address some of these issues? 
 
Clayburgh: We have not, but I don’t believe they do. 
 
(1:07:05) Mark Hovland, President of ND Grain Dealers Association, neutral party 
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Hovland: I am testifying on behalf of our Director Stu Richter. I believe we’re talking about 
the grain licensing in response to the latest insolvency case involving a roving grain buyer. 
We agree with some of the changes this bill proposes and disagree with some others, but 
we believe there’s a bigger issue to be addressed. There are distinct sectors of the general 
grain industry that current licensing does not address nor do we feel that they would be 
addressed by this bill. The grain industry is changing more and more. We have other entities 
moving in as roving grain buyers. Roving grain buyers are different entities from the grain 
warehouses and processors who operate differently. We feel a whole-sale review of the 
entire grain licensing law is in order and would suggest a thorough study to examine the 
current law and make recommendations to address the challenges of the industry today. We 
feel a careful review is better than reactionary legislative changes. We believe a robust 
inspection program must be a vital part of the general grain license division.  
 
Senator Hogan: Are the roving grain dealers members of your association? 
 
Hovland: Some are. 
 
Senator Hogan: Is your grain dealers association a voluntary group? 
 
Hovland: Yes. 
 
 
Chairman Luick closes the hearing on SB 2346. 
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Job# 32406 (14:54) 
 

☐ Subcommittee 

☐ Conference Committee 

 

      Committee Clerk: Meghan Pegel 

 

Explanation or reason for introduction of bill/resolution: 

 
A BILL for an Act to create and enact a new section to chapter 60-02, a new section to 

chapter 60-02.1, and a new section to chapter 60-10 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to records confidentiality for warehousemen and grain buyers and assessment 
refunds for grain producers; to amend and reenact subsection 5 of section 60-02-07 and 

sections 60-02-11, 60-02.1-07, 60-02.1-37, 60-02.1-38, 60-04-09, 60-04-10, 
60-10-01, 60-10-02, 60-10-03, 60-10-04, 60-10-05, 60-10-06, 60-10-07, 60-10-09, 

60-10-10, 60-10-13, 60-10-14, and 60-10-15 of the North Dakota Century Code, 
relating to warehouse and grain buyer licensing, scale ticket conversions, claims 

distributions, assessments and refunds, subrogation, and unlicensed grain buyers; to 
provide a penalty; to provide a continuing appropriation; and to provide for reports. 

 
 

Minutes:                                                 1 Attachment 

 
 
Chairman Luick begins discussion on SB 2346. 
 
 
(see attachment #1) 
Senator Wanzek: I’ve handed out an amendment. Throughout the amendment, we change 
“may” with “shall” to be consistent with the other parts of the law. We also change “producer” 
with “claimant” because it’s not just producers that are involved in the insolvency. Page 2 line 
16-19 relates to if a warehouseman becomes insolvent and a claimant who failed to convert 
the claimant’s grain. The amendment adds “or signs a waiver”. We’re saying that a person 
who delivers grain under the current law would in 45 days have to decide whether it’s cashed, 
stored or goes into a credit sale contract. This new bill will say after 30 days if they don’t sign 
it, they automatically go into the credit sale category. Bottom of page 2 we add “or renewal”. 
We’re going to give the authority to PSC to ask for additional pertinent financial information 
when they issue a license plus when they try to renew.  

A lot of this amendment is about world changes. The release of records and 
confidentiality- that is language borrowed from the way we handle livestock auction barns. 
The purpose of the PSC to ask for pertinent financial information is not to make a public 
record, but to use it to make decisions on licensure. Page 7 line 9 is taking the assessment 
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from one-tenth to one-twentieth. The original bill was going to up the $6M cap to $10M, but 
we’ll leave there. We’re really not changing the indemnity fund levels or triggers; it will 
continue on the way it is. The only thing we’re changing is the assessment in which grain is 
assessed. Every sale is assessed now if the trigger is on. 
 
Chairman Luick: and that’s 1/25th? 
 
Senator Wanzek: That’s 1/20th of 1% which would generate about $3M. If you sell half a 
million dollars’ worth of grain on your farm, you will be assessed $250. If you sell a million, 
you will be assessed $500. Under current law, if you’re being assessed, it would be 4x that. 
 
Going back to the amendment, there’s added language in who’s eligible for the indemnity 
fund. The law said it used to be the credit sale contracts; we’re adding noncredit-sale contract 
or storage contracts. It’s going to cover them all. The last section is the refund; we didn’t 
change anything there. We mirrored that after the way Indiana handles their indemnity fund. 
We’re giving people the option to opt out and ask for a refund if they don’t like it.  
 
Chairman Luick: Can they opt back in? 
 
Senator Wanzek: That’s not addressed; we may need to. We could have put some language 
in there that if an insolvency is declared and you’re part of it, you cannot go back and pay up 
all the back assessments and qualify. It’s not addressed. We’re giving them an opportunity 
to buy back in, but the way it’s worded, they’d have to pay all of the assessments to do so. 
 
Senator Hogan: We followed Indiana? Maybe we should look at what they’re doing on opting 
back in. 
 
Senator Wanzek: Commissioner Christman said he looked, and this may be where he got 
the language from. We’ve already dressed the FTEs and fiscal note. We’re going to add 1.5 
more grain inspectors. There’s already 2 there, but they’re not fully funded. We’re going to 
fund those 2 fully, add another one and add a specialized accountant that recognizes how to 
read financial statements and knows a bit about the industry to help prevent this situation. 
We’re not just doing this for the one incident; we’ve had other insolvencies. Maybe we would 
have identified a problem if we would have given them some authority and a few more 
inspectors. 
 
Senator Hogan moves to adopt amendment 19.1148.01002.  
Senator O. Larsen Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Amendment is adopted. 
 
Senator Myrdal moves a Do Pass as Amended and Rerefered to Appropriations. 
Senator O. Larsen Seconds. 
 
A Roll Call Vote was Taken: 6 yeas, 0 nays, 0 absent. Amendment is adopted. 
 
 
Chairman Luick will carry the bill. 
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